
 

 

 

 
 

                                TOWN OF WAKEFIELD, NEW HAMPSHIRE 
      ZONING BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT    

                                                                                       Monday, April 20, 2020  

 

 

 

                         APRIL 20, 2020 ZBA MINUTES FOR SITE WALK  
 

                                               

                                                             APPROVED 

 

The ZBA site walk began at 6:40pm. Present at the site walk Board members 
George Frothingham, Don Stewart, Annie Robbins, Doug Stewart and Robert 
Baxter. Representing the Garvin Mercantile LLC, Christopher P. Mulligan, ESQ. and 
Victor Vinagro Land Use Clerk/ Building Inspector. George Frothingham opened 
up the meeting asking Christopher Mulligan to explain the variance they are 
seeking. Christopher Mulligan pointed out the where the ramp would be placed 
inside of the set back. Don Stewart asked what kind of materials where to used 
for the construction of the ADA-compliant ramp. Christopher Mulligan said they 
would be using pressure treated lumber for the structural frame of the deck and 
he believed the decking was to be Trex decking or something similar. Building 
Inspector Victor Vinagro said that the MacArthur’s owners of the Garvin 
Mercantile building are working with the Heritage committee to come up with an 
agreeable product. The site walk adjourned at 6:50pm. 
 

Vmv                                                                                                             

         

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 



 

 

 
 
 

                                    TOWN OF WAKEFIELD, NEW HAMPSHIRE 
                            ZONING BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT    

                                                          Monday, April 20, 2020  

 

                                                      APPROVED 

 

                                
 

George Frothingham, 
Chairman 

X Doug Stewart X Victor Vinagro, Land Use Clerk & 
Code Enforcement Officer 

X 

Don Stewart 
Vice Chairman 

X Robert Baxter X Rick Sager, Town Counsel  

John Crowell 
 

  Site Walk X 

Judi DesRoches 
 

  Public Hearing  X  

Annie Robbins X     

 
 
Others present for the ZBA meeting  

Christopher P. Mulligan and Clearview Community TV. 

                  

Pledge of Allegiance & Call the meeting to order 

The meeting was called to order at 7:00.  

 

Seat Alternates as necessary 

Mr. Doug Stewart was seated for absent member Judi DesRoches and Robert Baxter was seated 

for John Crowell. Board introductions were then made.  

 

Public Hearings  

Variance Application: submitted by Christopher P. Mulligan for property owned by  

Brian & Margot MacArthur, Tax Map 180-107; 3 High Street. The applicant is seeking an  

approval of a Variance Application from the Town of Wakefield Zoning Ordinances 

Article 3, Table 2 Minimum Setbacks. The Applicant is seeking relief of a Side line setback 

in order to install an ADA-compliant handicap accessible ramp.   

This request involves construction over a property line and Mr. Frothingham wanted to make it 

clear that the ZBA has no authority to grant a request for construction over another’s property 

line. The ZBA can only grant a variance up to the property line and other arrangements with the 

Town would then be necessary. Mr. Vinagro stated that the fees have been paid, the abutters 

have been notified and the public notice has run.  

Mrs. Robbins made a motion, seconded by Mr. Baxter, to accept the application. (Vote 5-0) 



 

 

The Chair stated that Mr. Mulligan’s written presentation will be part of the public record. 

Mr. Mulligan said the project is to replace what you, see with a modern ADA compliant ramp 

which will require construction up to and slightly over the lot line. He has discussed an easement 

arrangement with Rick Sager, Town Council. A decision hasn’t been made but he’s confident 

that will be worked out. Any relief the ZBA gives will be contingent on those arrangements. 

They need a variance for a zero setback.  

Mr. Mulligan went through the five Criteria: (see attached) 

Criteria 1 The proposed use would not diminish surrounding property values 

Mr. Don Stewart asked where the end of the proposed ramp comes on to Town property. He 

asked, does it come on to asphalt? Mr. Mulligan believes it will abut the asphalt. Mr. Robbins 

asked if there was any setback from the railroad property. Mr. Mulligan said that would also be 

at a zero setback.  

Criteria 2 Granting the variance would not be contrary to the public interest 

Mr. Mulligan added that the ramp would be built to modern building codes. 

Criteria 3 Granting the variance would do substantial justice   

No questions from the Board. 

Criteria 4 The use is not contrary to the spirit of the ordinance 

No questions from the Board. 

Criteria 5 Literal enforcement of the provisions of the ordinance would result in an 

unnecessary hardship 

No questions from the Board. 

 

Mr. Frothingham opened and closed the Public Hearing at 7:16 as there were no public in 

attendance.  

Mr. Doug Stewart said he didn’t feel that there was much to discuss as they have never had a 

case that was this simple and straightforward. His personal opinion is that they should grant the 

variance with the condition that their Town Attorney has suggested. Mr. Baxter said he feels it is 

an improvement on safety. Mrs. Robbins is in favor of the application and likes the elevation.  

Mr. Don Stewart made a motion, seconded by Mr. Baxter, to approve the variance 

conditioned upon the suitable easement and or license being accepted by the Town. 

Mrs. Robbins said she would like to make a motion that would alleviate the applicant from 

coming to the Zoning Board should the easement not work with the community. She asked if 

there was any way they could have a condition be of any configuration of the ramp that is 

approved by the state like changing the elevations would be fine. Mr. Frothingham said the ZBA 

would have conditions that it would be built properly according to the ADA standards and 

have approval of the Town and assuming that is done there would be no reason for them to come 

back to us.  

Mr. Vinagro said that they have come to the Planning Board and had a thorough discussion. All 

this Would be is to relieve them from the setbacks. The rest would be between Rick Sager and 

Mr. Mulligan to work out the fine details. The Town is good with it. Mrs. Robbins said she 

would like the motion to say that any configuration with the ramp would be acceptable. Mr. 

Doug Stewart said everything he has heard the Town has no problem with this. They just needed 

to come to us for the setback variance. Mr. Vinagro said they are looking for a zero setback for 

relief. The five-foot easement will be a decision made with the town. Mr. Frothingham said a 

condition could say, with a suitable arrangement with the town. Mr. Don Stewart called for a 

Point of Order.  



 

 

He had made a motion that was seconded and asked that the vote be taken. The Chairman called 

the vote. (Vote 5-0)  

Mr. Frothingham announce that the variance has been approved with a condition. He pointed  

out that any interested party could appeal the decision within 30 days.  

 

 

Board Business 

 

Approval of Minutes of March 23, 2020 

 

Mr. Don Stewart made a motion, seconded by Mr. Doug Stewart, to approve the minutes of 

March 23rd with corrections. (Vote 3-0-2) 

 

Correspondence 

Mr. Vinagro just received a variance application from Mr. Kerry Fox, a minor subdivision on 

Leightons Corner. This will be set up for the May 18th meeting.  

 

Board Business 

Mrs. Robbins asked the Chairman if he would consider doing remote meetings. Mr. Vinagro said 

the Selectmen and Planning Board were doing remote meetings now. A discussion ensued. A 

live site walk and a Zoom meeting might be an option for the ZBA. No action was taken. 

 

Set Next Meeting Date 

Monday May 18th.  

 

Adjournment 

Mr. Don Stewart made a motion, seconded by Mrs. Robbins, to adjourn the meeting at 

7:38. (Vote 5-0) 

 

Respectfully submitted for approval at the next ZBA meeting, 

 

Priscilla Colbath, ZBA Secretary 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 
 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 


